
Posted: 1/15/2020 @ 4:15pm 
  

 
  

  
Georgetown 

Town Council Meeting Agenda 
Meeting Date: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 

Location: Town Hall, 39 The Circle, Georgetown, DE 19947 
Time: 6:45 PM Public Hearing 

Regular Meeting Immediately Following Public Hearing 

 
  6:45 PM - PUBLIC HEARING 
  

An application by Larson Engineering Group, Inc., on behalf of developer, K. Hovnanian Homes, for an official 
zoning map amendment from Urban Residential (UR1) with a Residential Planned Community (RPC) overlay 
zoning district to Townhouse Residential (MR2). The properties are located on the west side of the intersection of 
Vaughn Road & Ennis Road, identified as Sussex County Tax Map ID 135-14.00-44.01; 47.01; 50.00.   

3 - 
16 

 
  Vaughn Road Rezone Application Submittal 

12-18-19 DRAFT PC Minutes  
 
  REGULAR MEETING IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
4. APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 11, 2019 TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES   
17 - 
21 

 
  2019 December 11 TC Minutes 

 
 
5. AUTHORIZE PURCHASE OF A 55KW TOWABLE GENERATOR SIZED FOR 

EMERGENCY USE AT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE AND SEWER/WATER PUMP 
STATIONS   

22 
 
  Memo - Towable Generator 

 
 
6. WEBSITE REDESIGN PROPOSAL FROM DELMARVA DIGITAL (UPDATE OF 

TOWN WEBSITE)   
23 - 
48 

 Memo - Website Design and Development 
Website Redesign Proposal - Delmarva Digital  

 
7. PRESENTATION AND REQUEST FOR THE TOWN OF GEORGETOWN TO JOIN 

MONARCH CITY USA (TO SUPPORT AND ENCOURAGE THE RECOVERY OF 
THE MONARCH BUTTERFLY POPULATION)   

49 - 
54 

 
  Monarch City USA Information 

Beneficial Native Plants 
Milkweedpatch Brochure  

 
8. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS     



55 - 
59 

A. Town Manager - Gene Dvornick 
Town Manager Report - 2020-01-22 
2021 Budget Schedule 
Delaware General Assembly Legislative Report (150 GA - 2nd Session) (2020-
01-22)   

 
 
B. 

 
Superintendent Wastewater Department - Eric Rust  

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
  

The agenda items as listed may not be considered in sequence. This agenda is subject to change, at or before the 
meeting, to include the addition or deletion of items, including executive sessions. Persons requiring special 
accommodations to attend this meeting should contact the Town Office in writing 72 hours in advance of the 
meeting, stating their needs in order to have them addressed under the requirements of the American with 
Disabilities Act (ADA). 

 

Page 2 of 59



Page 3 of 59



Page 4 of 59



Page 5 of 59



Page 4 of 59



Page 4 of 59



Page 4 of 59



Page 9 of 59



Page 44 of 59



Page 44 of 59



Page 44 of 59



Page 43 of 59



Page 44 of 59



An application by Larson Engineering Group, Inc., on behalf of developer, K 
Hovnanian Homes, for an official zoning map amendment from Urban Residential 
(UR1) with a Residential Planned Community (RPC) overlay zoning district to 
Townhouse Residential (MR2). The properties are located on the west side of the 
intersection of Vaughn Road & Ennis Road, identified as Sussex County Tax Map ID 
135-14.00-44.01, 47.01 & 50.00. 

Page 45 of 59



Page 44 of 59



Mayor and Council will convene a special meeting in Executive Session, pursuant to 29 Del. C. 
§10004(e), for the purpose(s) of: 

A. Strategy sessions, including advice or opinion from an attorney at law, regarding (1) 
collective bargaining, and (2) pending or potential litigation and records relating 
thereto. 29 Del. C. §10004(b)(4); (b)(6) 

Page 44 of 59



Page 44 of 59



Page 49 of 59



Motion by Councilwoman Lecates, seconded by Councilwoman Johnson-Dennis to 
approve cancelling the January 8, 2020 Town Council Meeting due to a scheduling 
conflict. Motion Carried (unanimous)

o

o

o

o

o

Page 44 of 59



o

Page 44 of 59



TOWN OF GEORGETOWN MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor & Council

FROM: Gene Dvornick, Town Manager

RE: Towable Generator  

DATE: January 22, 2020

The Town has received three (3) proposals for a 55 kW Towable Generator:

Vendor Proposal
Curtis Engine $48,883.00

Fidelity Power Systems $38,950.00

Kelly Generator & Equipment, Inc. $33,750.00

The generator has been sized to completely power the entire Administrative 
Office (37 The Circle – which has a power transfer switch and connections for a 
generator) and can also be used as back up for a sewer pump station or at a water plant.

After discussion with the Construction Coordinator, our recommendation is the 
Fidelity Power Systems Proposal at $38,950.00. The recommendation is based on their 
having a service department in Seaford, Delaware and our existing use of their generators 
at two (2) pump stations.

Attached, for your information, you will find a copy of each proposal and 
specification sheet for the selected generator.

Recommendation:

• Authorize up to $39,000 for the purchase of a 55 kW Towable Generator. 
Funding to be split between Sewer, Water, and Administration (Realty Transfer 
Tax Account).

Page 44 of 59



 

TOWN OF GEORGETOWN MEMORANDUM 

o

Page 43 of 59



Delmarva Digital
220 E Front Street, Laurel, DE 19956  302.875.7700  (F) 302.875.8288

Contract Proposal Outline and Structure for Town of Georgetown Delaware Website
VERSION 3

This project will include the following sections: 

Home (page sections)
Design website with current color themes -- Site-wide button bar along top
Home page design elements and fields:

- Logo and graphic header at top
- Horizontal Button bar at top under header
- Color themes: use white background, and existing colors
- Layout with updated design look and feel - fully responsive
- Facebook and social media icon links at top and bottom

Special header buttons (second row)
Code Enforcement
Online Payments

(page section)
Wide Slide Show with up to 3 Page wide slide show photos; with self-
update cropping tool

(page section)
Self-update fields include Welcome text with general text editor

(page section)
Latest News - mini section links to full page section

Notices - mini section links to full page section

(page section)
“Quick Links”
List of icons (direct links) for the most often clicked items

Tax Payments
Planning Department
Comp Plan
(Etc...)

Office hours and closings
Self-update software section:

Upcoming Events: Self-update software section 4 to 6 closest Events will
display - each linked to calendar detail page; and ‘View All Events” link

(page section)
Contact Us link to form page

(footer section)
Site map and contact Info and special ‘Contact Us’ graphic button

Email blast sign-up fields “Join our Email List & Stay Informed”
Get Urgent Alerts by Phone Text Message

Page 44 of 59



(Delete Me from Urgent Alerts)

ONLINE PAYMENTS  (roll over drop-down tab)
Web form page which links to eprocessing network .com

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS  (roll over drop-down tab)
Frequently Asked Questions section with self-update software; fields
include:  

Category (Include current “HOW DO I?” page as a category
**See current tab called “Taxes” for full FAQs with
categories; Transfer content to this section

Question
Answer 

NOTIFY ME  (roll over drop-down tab)

“Get Urgent Alerts”
Sign-up to Get Urgent Alerts from the Town of Georgetown

Text Alert Blast software package; includes the following fields:
Cell number 
Carrier (drop-down local carrier select) Verizon, ATT, Sprint, etc
Last name

Includes LINK on site footer to web form ‘self-delete’ feature

“Get Email Notifications”
Sign-up to Get Email Notifications from the Town of Georgetown 

Email Blast System - Admin back-end system only

Sign-up to ‘Get Email Alerts’ fields on front page
Email Blast Database System with the following fields:

First Name (required)
Last Name (required)
Email (required)

Select interests (admin edit check boxes)

Template option #1: HTML style email template based on the general site
design
Email messages will be sent out through back-end admin login; Message  
fields include:

Subject title
Text (General text editor) 
Photo .jpg - (landscape/horizontal)

2

Page 45 of 59



Link (URL)
(Static info: logo, address, phone, email link, etc.)

Plain text option #2: HTML style email template based on the general site  
design (See example for 11/18 email)
Email messages will be sent out through back-end admin login; Message  
fields include:

Subject title
Text (General text editor) 

Link (URL)

Admin Features:
- Label blast “Campaign” by name for archive
- Add “Send this email as a test before sending to All”

With send-to email address
- Archive ‘sent’ emails by email blast name
- Export database into excel file which could be used for offline
mailing labels, etc. 

News & Events (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

   UPCOMING EVENTS
Self-update linear display calendar software w/ auto delete; fields include
Display current 12 months at a time; organized by year and month

Text date
Location (embedded google map code)
Actual sort date (for programing)
Event title (bold)
Description text
PDF brochure upload with text title (optional)
Web link url with text title (optional)

Partial list events display on home page - ordered by nearest event
first

    NEWS 
(Formerly News & Notices)
Self-update software section in list format with the following fields for
each:

Title
News story text
URL or PDF link with link name - optional

 TAKE NOTE NEWSLETTER
Self-update section with the following fields:

3

Page 44 of 59



List page with most recent first; fields for each include
Title
Brief description text
PDF linked to title

    CONCERT SERIES
Self-update linear display calendar software w/ auto delete; fields include
Display current 12 months at a time; organized by year and month

Text date
Location (embedded google map code)
Actual sort date (for programing)
Event title (bold)
Description text
PDF brochure upload with text title (optional)
Web link url with text title (optional)

Partial list events display on home page - ordered by nearest event
first

    DART SCHEDULES
Self-update direct link to Dart website page - opens in a new browser tab

GEORGETOWN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  (link)
Self-update direct link to GCC website page - opens in a new browser tab

Departments (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

       OVERVIEW
Self-update software page with fields:

General text editor
PDF link with link name

        FINANCE
Self-update software page with fields:

General text editor

Self-update album cover menu with report categories
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures & Expenses
Budget
Budget vs Actual

        PLANNING
Self-update software section with general text editor to provide

4

Page 44 of 59



introductory and explanation information, and explain purpose of contact
form (Content note: This replaces Jocelyn and Jamie’s information)

Contact the Planning Department (web form

First Name
Last Name
Email
Phone
Comments or question
<Submit>

Contact form admin functionality: 
- Hold Contact forms in database
- Add admin “notes” field for each comment (after
submitted)
- Status “new” and “processed” or delete
- Admin Notify emails will be held in admin panel AND a full
email copy will be sent to up to 2 email addresses

Self-update software list section with the following fields for each section
Section headers with small icons beside each

Planning Administrator
Planning Assistant
Do you need a Building Permit?
Building Permit Issuance Guide
Town of Georgetown Zoning Map
Zoning Map
Zoning by Tax Map & Parcel Number
Town of Georgetown Walkability & Connectivity Study
Final Report
Comprehensive Plan
Downtown Development District (link to page under
“Business” section)

Description text (optional for each)
PDF Links ‘list’ with link name (Display in 3 columns)

(Add) View Frequently Asked Questions (graphic link to FAQs page)

(Add) “Regulations & Guidelines” list section; Fields for each item include:
Section title with small icon

- Code of the Town of Georgetown
- Development Design Standards
- Design & Construction Standards for Water, Sewer &
Streets
- Fee Schedule

Description text
PDF links (up to 4 side by side with title for link)

5

Page 44 of 59



       POLICE  (Link to georgetownpolicede.com)

        PUBLIC WORKS
Self-update Software sections include:

General Information with general text editor
Sub-sections with self-update software; fields for each include

Sub-section Title (list with add/edit)
Purpose
Staff Directory 
Public Documents
Emergency Numbers

Description/Explanation
Link List with link name for each

        WATER
Self-update Software sections include:

Sub-sections with self-update software; fields for each include
Sub-section Title (list with add/edit)

About the Water Department
Water Plant Locations
Staff Directory
Emergency Pager Numbers
Water Consumer Confidence Report

Description/Explanation
Link List with link name for each

        WASTEWATER
Self-update Software sections include:
Sub-sections with self-update software; fields for each include

Sub-section Title (list with add/edit)
About the Wastewater Department
Staff Directory 
Permit Limits
Emergency Pager Numbers
Inflow & Infiltration Project

Description/Explanation
Link List with link name for each

        CODE ENFORCEMENT
Self-update software section with general text editor
Self-update software list section with 

Category (ie. Code Enforcement Information, C. E. Violations)
Link with title for each

6

Page 49 of 59



CODE & ORDINANCES
(Direct link to ecode360.com)

Administration (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

           TOWN MANAGER REPORT
Self-update software section; Sub-section for each year - click to expand
Report links by date for each year; display in 3 or 4 columns

- Reports are PDFs with Link name for each

           YEAR IN REVIEW
Self-update software section (No sub-sections)
Annual Report links by date for each year; display in 3 columns

- Reports are PDFs with Link name for each

UTILITIES
Self-update section with general text editor

        FORMS & APPLICATIONS
Self-update Software sections include:

General Information with general text editor
Sub-sections with self-update software; fields for each include

Sub-section Title (list with add/edit)
Project / Review Applications                                     
Business License Applications

PDF Link List with link name for each
(Display in 3 columns)

        PUBLIC PERMITS (Circle/Square/Bedford Park and Parade Permits)
Self-update software section with general text editor
Self-update link graphics with link titles

        EMPLOYMENT
Self-update software section with the following fields:

General text editor area
List of positions open with these fields for each

Title of position
Explanation text
Upload your resume (restricted to PDFs, doc, docx)
Expiration date for display 

(keep expired postings on back-end)

7

Page 34 of 59



FOIA REQUEST  (drop-down rollover tab)
Features & Software Functionality
Actual page header will display “Freedom of Information Request”
Form database fields will include the following: (ALL fields Required) 
**see: seafordde.com  (for layout)

Request Date   (Auto fill)
Public Body   (admin generated drop-down list)

First Name
Last Name
Mailing Address
Mailing Address 2
City
State (drop-down - default DE)
Zip
Phone
Email

Records Requested 
Self-update explanation text field (use this text)

 “Be as specific as you can, describing types of records, dates, parties to 
correspondence, subject matter, etc. The public body will make every
reasonable effort to assist you in identifying the records being sought.”

“There may be costs involved in responding to your request. The public
body can require you to examine the records at the office of the public
body. Refer to the public body's policy or regulation for information about
costs and access to records.”

“Note: Requests for voluminous records may be delayed.”

Open text field (for user entry)

Please Contact me if costs will be greater than (open field formatted for
monetary amount)

Self-update disclaimer for this section will read:

“* Within 15 business days from receipt of your request the public body must either
provide you with access to the records, deny your request, or state that additional
time is needed.*”

Self-update text section for NOTICE will read:

NOTICE : “Under Delaware's Freedom of Information Act, 29 Del. C.
§§10001-10006 ("FOIA"), a FOIA request or petition, along with any information
contained therein or any documents attached thereto, submitted to any "public
body" subject to FOIA, including, without limitation, any board, bureau,
commission, department, agency or committee of the State, may itself be deemed
a "public record" subject to disclosure under FOIA. More information on FOIA is

8

Page 34 of 59



available at foia.delaware.gov .”

<Submit>

Auto-responder page (admin self-update)

Auto-responder email (admin self-update)

ADMIN Features
- Administrator can view client records directly from the back of the
web-site
- Form Requests entries are date stamped
- Form Requests entry status

New
Processed
Cancelled
(Or Delete) 

Admin email notifier with admin edit (up to 2 emails)
Admin phone text notifier with one phone number and admin edit
(optional admin use)

Admin Reports
- Generate reports by date range and quantity of requests
- Generate reports by date range and quantity of requests per
person making request

Meetings (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

        BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Self-update software list style section with the following fields for
each item

Section title
Structure
Meetings
Members

Description text
“Click here to view Agendas & Minutes” 
(link to civicweb portal page)

        PLANNING COMMISSION
Self-update software section with general text editor
“Click here to view Agendas & Minutes” 

(link to civicweb portal page)

        MAYOR & COUNCIL

9

Page 34 of 59



Self-update software section with general text editor
“Click here to view Agendas & Minutes” 

(link to civicweb portal page)

        AGENDAS & MINUTES
Self-update section with general text editor for explanation of civic web
portal link
“Click here to view Agendas & Minutes” 

(link to civicweb portal page)

Government (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

        OVERVIEW
Self-update software section with general text editor

        MAYOR & COUNCIL
Self-update software section includes 

Group photo
Caption

List section with fields for each Council Member
Full Name
Email address
Biography text

        PLANNING COMMISSION
Self-update software list style section with the following fields for each    
item

Section title
Structure
Meetings
Members

Description text for each

        BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Self-update software list style section with the following fields for each    
item

Section title
Structure
Meetings
Members

Description text for each

10

Page 33 of 59



        EMPLOYEE MEMORIAL
Self-update software section with general text editor

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
Self-update software list style section with the following fields for each    
item

Section title (with add/edit)
Invitation
Presentations
Updates
Press Releases

List of PDFs with text name text for each

Business (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

        FORMS & DOCUMENTS
Self-update graphical link section for PDFs with document title link for     
each

        LICENSED BUSINESSES
Self-update graphical link section for PDFs with document title link for     
each

APPLY FOR NEW BUSINESS LICENSE 
(**Programmer note: code this section but don’t go live until later in 2020)
New Business License Application
Form database fields will include the following: (ALL fields Required) 

Business Information
Application Date   (Auto fill-admin only view)
Business Name: 
Business Address:
Phone: 
City:   
State:    
Zip:
Description/Type of Business: (open field) 
Days & Hours of Operation:

                
Mailing Address

City:  
State:     
Zip:

Federal & State information      
Federal I.D. Number:   

11

Page 34 of 59



State of Incorporation:            
**Copy of State License Required to accompany application 

Owner Name*
Phone:
Upload scan of Delaware business license

**If  the  applicant  is  a  partnership,  corporation,  limited  liability 
company  (LLC),  government  or  governmental  agency, 
statutory  trust,       business trust , or two (2) or more persons
having a joint or common trust or any other legal or commercial
entity the names and addresses and telephone numbers of the
individuals shall be provided. You may attach a separate sheet with
this information.   

Contact Name (if not owner):
Phone:
Email Address:

FEE (Select One Category) 
Out of Town Business                    Fee:   $120 
General Business located within Georgetown Town limits (1-10 employees)   #___    Fee:    $78 
General Business located within Georgetown Town limits (11-50 employees) #___    Fee:  $180
General Business located within Georgetown Town limits (51+ employees)    #___    Fee:  $270
Non-Profit (Must provide documentation)                        Fee:      $0 
Storage Units    Number of Units: _____           Fee: $2.40 per unit ($270 maximum)

__ I certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the information on the application is true and
correct and that a false answer can subject the application to denial or a license to revocation.  I
comply with all provisions of this chapter and all other laws and ordinances of the  Town  of 
Georgetown  and  other  jurisdictions  relating  to  the  business  or  enterprise  for  which  the 
license  is  required,  including applicable  zoning  and  building  codes,  and  shall  continue  to 
do  so  throughout  the  term  of  the  license.    This  application  will  be considered complete
only when all sections have been completed in their entirety and payment received for the proper
 fees

Full Name of Applicant Submitting this form
First Name
Middle Initial
Last Name

<Submit>

(Standard ecommerce cc check out process connecting to Town’s existing
gateway)

ADMIN Features
Auto-responder page (admin self-update)
Auto-responder email (admin self-update)
- Administrator can view client records directly from the back of the

12

Page 35 of 59



web-site
- Form Requests entries are date stamped
- Form Requests entry status

New
Processed
Cancelled
(Or Delete) 

- Name of admin who processed (auto captured by login info)

Admin email notifier with admin edit (up to 2 emails)
Admin phone text notifier with one phone number and admin edit
(optional admin use)

Search by Business Name and/or Date Range

Account #
Inspection By:
Approved: 
Denied:

        STARTING A BUSINESS
Self-update software FAQs section with fields

Question
Answer

‘Additional Resources’
Self-update software list section with fields for each Resource item

Link name url (or) pdf 
Description

        GRANT & LENDING OPPORTUNITIES
Self-update software list section with fields for each Resource item

Link name url (or) pdf 
Description

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DDD Home page with static logo and Self-update general text area

(Icon links to special pages)
Map & Property Information
Incentives
Resources
Downtown Development District Plan
Presentations
Downtown Development District News
Archives

13

Page 34 of 59



* Special sub-navigation section appears to allow for navigating through all
7 pages while in any specific one of the7

Map & Property Information
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list

Incentives
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list

Resources
Self-update general text editor

Self-update sections with 3 static categories; add/edit fields:
Documents (list)

PDF link list with link name for each

Websites (list)
URL link list with link name for each

Contacts (list)
List of contacts with se

Name of Organization
Contact Name
Email
Phone

Downtown Development District Plan
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list

Presentations
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

Downtown Development District News
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

Archives
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

Community (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

        RELOCATING

14

Page 34 of 59



Self-update list style page with the following fields for each section
Section title
General text editor
PDF (or) URL link list with link name for each

        CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS (replaces business directory)
Self-update accordion style list section with the following fields for each

Organization name
General text editor for contact information
Url link button “Learn More”

        PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

        HISTORY
Self-update general text editor with URL link to Georgetown Historical
Society “time line” page?

BRANDING
Self-update software section with embedded youtube video

Self-update general text editor with PDF/URL link list with link name for
each

TOWN MAPS
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

Election Information (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

        OVERVIEW
Self-update general text editor

       VOTER REGISTRATION
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

       WARD LIMITS
Self-update general text editor with PDF with link name

       MAYOR/COUNCIL QUALIFICATIONS
Self-update general text editor

15

Page 34 of 59



        MAKING NOMINATIONS
Self-update general text editor

        MANOR OF HOLDING ELECTIONS
Self-update general text editor

       CANDIDATE SERVICES
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

        ABSENTEE VOTING
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

Notices & Information (drop-down menu only, no direct page)

PUBLIC NOTICES
Self-update list section with the following fields for each Notice

Title
General text editor for contact information
Url/URL link button with link name

    IMPORTANT NOTICES
Self-update list section with the following fields for each Notice

Title
General text editor for contact information
Url/URL link button with link name

    INVITATION TO BID
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

LODGING TAX INFORMATION
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

    PARKING TICKETS
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

POLICE REPORTS (Delete?)

16

Page 39 of 59



    TRASH-RECYCLE CALENDAR
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

    TURN THE CIRCLE A COLOR
Self-update general text editor with font color select

    VACANT STRUCTURES
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

    CIRCLE/SQUARE/PARADE PERMITS
Self-update general text editor with PDF link list with link name for each

ARMED FORCES SERVICE RECOGNITION
   Self-update section with general explanation text editor

‘Click here to download Submission form’
(Self-update software)

Self-update grid style display section will include 
Name of Service (US AirForce, Army, etc.)
Flag graphic
Self-update list of names with rank

CONTACT US   (constant tab on header with drop down menu)

Self-update contact information with general text editor and include
Address, phone numbers, and ADD embedded google map beside
contact information

Phone Directory with self-update software list section includes:
Name, Title and Extension for each

Contact Us  (Form)
First Name
Last Name
Email
Phone
Street Address
City, St, Zip
Comments

Who would you like to contact? 
(Drop down with name & title with admin edit)

(Examples may include)

17

Page 44 of 59



Town Manager
Human Resources
Office Manager
Clerk of Council
Community Development Coordinator
Code Enforcement Officer
Etc...

 
Each Name has email address admin edited field; emails will be held in
admin panel AND a ‘notify’ full copy will be sent to:

Person selected
One additional email address 

Database functionality: 
Hold Contact forms in database
Add admin “notes” field for each comment (after submitted)
Status “new” and “processed” or delete
 

EMPLOYEE PORTAL (OPTIONAL) Private Employee Portal
(Admin assigned password - user name is based on email address)
Admin can view and edit all employee passwords; employees will have
forgot password software feature, and can edit passwords
After login, display the following page tabs:

Entry ‘Home Page’ design with 
- Icons for easy access to all sections
- (Admin) Self-update ‘Notices & Announcements’ section will
display up to 5 most recent notices with link to “View All Notices”
Self-update fields include:

Title 
Date (auto filled when submitted)
Notice text 
Links list with link name and url - optional

CHANGE MY PASSWORD (Employee Account fields)
Employee Database fields include: (ONLY password filed can be
changed) “All other fields are View Only”

First name - view only
Last name - view only
Email (username) all employees must use email address
Password (must be eight char, combination of letters and
numbers)
Cell phone number (for emergency alerts)

- Cell phone carrier (drop-down select) 
ATT, Verizon, etc.

18

Page 44 of 59



NOTICES & ANNOUNCEMENTS
Full section (see description above)
Self-update section with the following fields for each news item:

Title
Text (with text editor)
Links list with link name and url (OR) pdf

Display: every other item is very slightly shaded

GENERAL DOCUMENTS & RESOURCES 
(ie. Benefits documents & forms)

Admin Self-update software section with the following fields
Category (with drop-down list)
Document name and actual pdf or word file linked
Description text (optional)

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS
(ie. Employee Manual, etc)

Admin Self-update software section with the following fields
Category (with drop-down list)
Document name and actual pdf file linked
Description text (optional)

Added software features for “Required Document” section will include:
- (View Required Documents) Employee can click ‘check box’ for
each document that states “As of this date, I have read this
document in it’s entirety”

- (View Report) Admin Only - can select any document from list of
required documents and view report list of all employees by “read”
and  “did not read”

- (View Report History) Admin Only - can review document read
status in a chart style document, or search by employee  

- Report Export in pdf feature by date range

*Delmarva Digital’s Recommendation: Modify Handbook to state that
employees are responsible for maintaining the confidentiality and security
of their own password, and passwords must be letters and numbers, at
least six characters long.

REQUIRED VIDEOS
(ie. Employee training, compliance, etc)

Admin Self-update software section with the following fields
Category (with drop-down list)
Video name and actual embedded vidoe

19

Page 44 of 59



Description text (optional)

Added software features for “Required Video” section will include:
- (View Required Videos) Employee can click ‘check box’ for each
document that states “As of this date, I have read this document in
it’s entirety”
- (View Report) Admin Only - can select any Video from list of
required videos and view report list of all employees by “read” and 
“did not read”
- (View Report History) Admin Only - can review video viewed
status in a chart style document, or search by employee  
- Export Report in pdf - feature

TEAM GALLERY 
Self-update photo gallery software; gallery intro page will display default
category thumbnail photos in horizontal rows of 5-7 per row; each photo
links to dynamically generated individual page with enlarged photo and
caption, using Light Box technology; fields include:

Category (expandable)
Thumbnail photo (max width 125 pixels)
Large photo (550 pixel enlargement of thumbnail)
Title/caption (Display on enlarged photo only)
Description text up to 250 words (Display on enlarged photo only)

EMPLOYEE CALENDAR
Self-update linear display calendar software w/ auto delete; fields include
Display current 12 months at a time; organized by year and month

Text date
Location text
Actual sort date (for programing)
Event title (bold)
Description text

PDF brochure upload with text title (optional)
Web link url with text title (optional)

TOWN DOCUMENTS (SHARED)
After Employee login, this section is only viewed by _______________

Category List
(Select Category from list, and then View Documents List for each
Category) 
PDF & Word docs

View Document List and Date for each
- uploaded by admin or employee

Admin Navigation will include the following sections & functionality 
(Admin-only Tabs) 

MANAGE Categories (admin)

20

Page 43 of 59



Set-up (Create/Edit)
- Document Title
- Category

Create / Edit Category
Choose Category (drop-down)

MANAGE DOCUMENTS
(Add/Edit/Delete function for each Category)

View Documents List for each Category
View Title of Document and Date uploaded for each

- view documents by Category 

Admin Management
- System will auto-generate passwords and allow administrators to
override those passwords. Passwords are recommended to be at least 8
characters long with at least 2 numeric. System will include a forgotten
password retrieval system utilizing a confidential question and answer.

There will be no password retrieval system for administrators for over-all
security reasons 

File Management
- No individual file size limits (file size may effect download time based on
internet connection) At some point, archiving years of large files may
effect hosting costs 

MY PERSONAL DOCUMENTS (private per employee)
After Employee login, this section is only viewed by Employee logged in
and Admin

Document List
(View single Documents List) PDF & Word docs

View Document and Date for each
- uploaded by admin or employee

Admin Navigation will include the following sections & functionality 
(Admin-only Tabs) 

Set-up (Create/Edit)
- Document Title

View Documents List for each Category
View Title of Document and Date uploaded for each

- view documents by Category 

Admin Management

21

Page 44 of 59



- System will auto-generate passwords and allow administrators to
override those passwords. Passwords are recommended to be at least 8
characters long with at least 2 numeric. System will include a forgotten
password retrieval system utilizing a confidential question and answer.

There will be no password retrieval system for administrators for over-all
security reasons 

File Management
- No individual file size limits (file size may effect download time based on
internet connection) At some point, archiving years of large files may
effect hosting costs 

EMPLOYEE NEWSLETTER
Self-update Employee newsletter link with archive list; fields include:
(Most recent first)

Newsletter title & PDF

ADMIN ONLY SECTIONS EMPLOYEE EMAIL AUTO-BLAST SYSTEM
Automated emails to notify staff of special events including anniversaries,
work anniversaries, birthdays, etc” 

Emails will auto-blast to all employees in the database who have a
username and password login

Text only Email messages will be sent out through back-end login;
Message fields include:

Subject
 Text

URL link with text name (optional)

Special Admin feature:

Automated Email Blast System with “Special Event” per employee
Individual event(s) per employee;  fields include:

First Name
Last Name
Email 
Type of Event (drop-down admin select list)
Select from list of Events (with admin edit) 

Birthday
Wedding Anniversary
Work Anniversary

Original Date of event (month / day / year) ie. Birth date (optional)
If this field is not filled in, then system will still function

Template email message to be sent for each type of Event
reminder including subject and message which can be edited by

22

Page 45 of 59



administrator; fields include:
- Subject (ie. Happy Birthday!)
- MessageText (Please wish name a happy 45th birthday 
today) Auto populate number field based on “Original Date
of Event”
- Recurring Annual date to send auto blast (admin display)

Multiple entries per person
Generate list of employee events for admin edit; search by last
name, etc

***SSL: THIS SITE WILL BE 100% SSL***  

Notes:

All text, database data and graphics, are the property of Town of Georgetown, which will be referred to from this
point forward as the client.  All text and photos will be provided to Delmarva Digital by client.  All text will be
provided in a standard text format such as Word or WordPerfect. 

As always, all web application software developed by Delmarva Digital / IBPC is licensed for use on ddmg.net
servers only and it may be purchased for other purposes including resale, distribution or transfer from ddmg.net
servers, for an additional fee.  Although Delmarva Digital strives to maintain the highest possible standards in
server uptime, Delmarva Digital will not be responsible or liable for any losses incurred due to outages or site
downtime. The total aggregate liability of Delmarva Digital to the customer shall be limited to the amount of one
year of the Annual Web Hosting Contract. In no event shall Delmarva Digital be liable for any indirect, special,
exemplary, punitive, incidental or consequential damages, loss of profits or loss of business, regardless of whether
or not Delmarva Digital has been advised of the possibility of such damages.  

The client  agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold Delmarva Digital/IBPC, its officers, directors, employees, agents,
licensors, and suppliers, harmless from and against any claims, actions or demands, liabilities and settlements
including without limitation, reasonable legal and accounting fees, resulting from, or alleged to result from, your
violation of these Notes, Terms and Conditions.

This contract supercedes previous discussions and email communication and does not include new additions to the
project outside the scope of this contract outline, new development ideas or programming changes. This price
quote includes one initial basic design concept without flash or stock photography.  Additional design and
functionality changes and ideas beyond one initial basic design concept, or, changes to the scope of this contract,
are welcome and Delmarva Digital will gladly provide another quote upon request.  All pages will have a graphic
design template in common for the purpose of maintaining continuity of navigation throughout the site.  Updates to
the web site are not included.  All sections are static unless “self-update” is mentioned.  Search Engine ad
expenditures are not included in this contract.  Although it is not a common practice, Delmarva Digital may increase
future hosting fees based on factors that have not been calculated in this contract such as heavy server usage, or
unusual monetary price inflation. 

Additional page design concepts will incur a fee of $295 each which will be added to final payment due. Domain
purchase is not included.  Additional Client revisions to this contract after client signature, will delay completion of
this project and, in many cases, will add additional cost.

Future changes and scope additions will be billed at $95/hour, and estimated in advance per client request

23

Page 44 of 59



Electronic Security Certificate

If a security certificate will be needed to engage in the secure transfer of information over the Internet at some point
in the future, Delmarva Digital will be glad to assist in the process of applying for this.  An independent security
company will charge an annual fee for this certificate and it’s renewal. 

Delmarva Digital strongly recommends that ssl be used on all forms due to the sensitive nature of the potential
contact information being provided.  All state, local and federal health care privacy and information security
compliance is solely the responsibility of the client. Additional information security protocols may be added as
requested by the client, for an additional fee, and can be quoted by Delmarva Digital per request.

Email Blast & Text Blast Hosting

Email notifications regarding orders (and email in general) can be interrupted by circumstances beyond the control
of Delmarva Digital such as, but not limited to, spam filtering equipment on other networks.  Email blast traffic can
be interrupted at any time with out notice, by major internet providers, or other internet issues outside of the control
of Delmarva Digital, as corporate security and spam filtration protocols may change and evolve over time. If text
blasting features are a part of this contract, text messaging (MMS) can also be effected by these same
circumstances. 

It is a violation of federal anti-spam law to use this email blast system to send email messages to anyone who has
not specifically requested to be on the email list.  Delmarva Digital reserves the right to disable email blast
capabilities without refund, if the client, or any one else, misuses this system, or is abusive to email recipients in
any way.

When the web-based email blast database list grows beyond 2500 email addresses, including active and inactive
email addresses, the client will incur and additional hosting fee billed annually as a separate fee as follows: $20 per
month after 2500 email addresses are reached, $40 per month after 5000 email addresses are reached, and an
additional $20 per month for every increment of 2500 email addresses reached beyond that.

Text Blast System Software: Cell phone company select options include many primary area carriers. Option select
list will not be all-inclusive for carriers outside of the Delmarva region.  This feature is intended for local clients.

Your Responsibility to Protect Your Domain & Administrator (Admin) Passwords

As this web-based project is being completed and is live on the internet, the client will be asked to create various
levels of administrator login passwords. The client is entirely responsible for maintaining the confidentiality of all
passwords. And the client is entirely responsible for all activity made by the client or anyone the client allows to use
this web-based site or project. The client agrees to safeguard all account passwords from access by others. The
client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Delmarva Digital/IBPC for losses incurred by Delmarva Digital or
another party due to someone else using the clients account or password as a result of client failure to use
reasonable care to safeguard the clients account.

The client is solely responsible for future domain renewals. Delmarva Digital/IBPC strongly recommends that the
client keep track of renewal anniversaries to avoid missing a renewal and potentially losing rights of use, and
control, of their domains. In no event shall Delmarva Digital/IBPC be liable for domain registration errors, or,
domains not being renewed. 

Investment:
 
Web Site Design & Development with Custom Content Management Software            $28,240

           Less Local Client Discount -10,000
   DEVELOPMENT   18,240

24

Page 44 of 59



__ Employee Portal (optional)   (Discounted from $10,250)    4,950

SSL Municipal Web Software Application Hosting with Content Management System 
(Discounted from $495 month)       239 / month

Email Blast Hosting (up to 2500 email blast list)  (regular price 59/mo.)         49 / month

Emergency Alert eGov Text Blast System (regular price 59/mo.)         49 / month

THIS DISCOUNTED HOSTING RATE IS BILLED 6 MONTHS AT A TIME, BEGINNING WHEN THE SITE GOES LIVE.   
(MONTHLY CC BILLING IS ALSO AVAILABLE AT A DIFFERENT RATE) 

Down Payment (typically 50%) ____
Payment Due at “go live” date on test server (hosting billing not included) ____

Authorized Signature: ________________________________________________ Date: ___/___/___
                     (Please sign this page and initial each previous page)

25

Page 44 of 59



JOIN MONARCH CITY  USA

America has over 19,000 municipalities.  Our goal is to 

get as many as possible in as short of time as possible to 

become creators/supporters of new monarch milkweed 

sites within their borders.  Membership allows other 

cities and towns to inquire about who is a member and 

how close are they to their city or town.  We believe in 

networking for more monarch habitat.

To be a Monarch City USA member your mayor 

and/or local government chief executives must register 

with us, pay the $50 lifetime fee, and purchase one or 

more signs. Signs are $150 each, but if you order 10 

signs we will give you two more signs for free.  We call it 

our "ten for a dozen" program.  It pays to buy in bulk.  

Most cities will purchase many signs.  Local garden 

clubs and other good civic organizations will likely want 

to purchase the signs for your city.  Ask around.

Be sure to call us at 605-691-1074 if you have questions.

To be a member of Monarch City USA, we ask that you commit to these simple, positive actions:

1.  Publicly proclaim that your city is committed to helping the monarch butterflies survive by your immediate and 

future actions. (A good example is from Brookings, Oregon: https://or-

brookings.civicplus.com/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/6170?fileID=12283 (https://or-

brookings.civicplus.com/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/6170?fileID=12283) )

2.  Encourage citizens to plant private milkweed and nectar gardens throughout your city.

3.  Work with gardening, landscaping, and/or arboretum clubs in your city.

(http://www.wisconsinrapidstribune.com/story/news/2017/04

lady-helps-port-edwards-earn-butterfly-

designation/99797084/)

Port Edwards, Wisconsin displays their "Monarch Village USA" 
sign on an entrance to the village. (Photo courtesy Pat McGrath)

H O M E  ( / )
A B O U T  U S  ( / A B O U T- U S )
M E M B E R S  ( / M E M B E R S )
N E W S  ( / N E W S )
G E T  I N V O LV E D  ( / G E T- I N V O LV E D )

J O I N  U S  ( / M E M B E R S H I P )

Monarch City USA (/ )

Page 49 of 59



4.   Support the national movement to support monarch butterfly habitat development by purchasing and placing 

Monarch City USA signs at appropriate sites.

5.  Convert abandoned lands to monarch butterfly habitat.

6.  Re-establish native milkweed and nectar plants where possible.

7.  If possible, host an annual monarch butterfly festival.  (Free advice is available from us, Monarch City USA.)

8.  Integrate monarch butterfly conservation into the city's future land use planning efforts.

 9.  Work with the local K-12 school system and educators to promote a better understanding of land use 

conservation.

10.  Investigate possible Monarch Butterfly Sanctuary sites.

POSSIBLE  C ITY  S ITES  FOR THE STREET S IGNS

You know your city better than anyone else.  We suggest that possible sites are along boulevards, streets, and avenues, 

on school grounds, around city hall, in your parks, etc.

The signs honor your city's commitment to a better habitat for the monarchs.  And, it lets your citizens and visitors 

know of your belief in a better habitat for one of nature's marvels:  THE MONARCH BUTTERFLY.

PURCHASE MONARCH CITY  USA STREET S IGNS

Each all-weather street sign, 12 inches by 18 inches,  costs $150, which includes mailing costs.   The street signs are of 

city-grade metal and paint, and made in the USA of the highest quality.  After payment, your order will be delivered 

within ten working days to any location in the continental United States.

We offer a choice of three slightly different and yet beautiful street signs.  Again, they are all-weather street signs of 

top-quality metal and paint.  See the attractive signs shown below.          

Page 54 of 59



Be
gg

ar
 T

ic
k 

or
 D

ev
il’

s 
be

gg
ar

 T
ic

k 
 

Bi
de

ns
 fr

on
do

sa
 

Ye
llo

w
is

h-
or

an
ge

 fl
ow

er
s 

 
tu

rn
 

in
to

 
se

ed
s 

th
at

 
“h

itc
h”

 a
 r

id
e 

on
 y

ou
r 

p
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 

cl
o

th
-

in
g…

ho
w

ev
er

 it
 is

 h
ig

hl
y 

be
ne

fic
ia

l 
to

 
w

ild
lif

e:
  

fo
od

 
fo

r 
du

ck
s,

 
m

us
k-

ra
ts

, 
ho

ne
yb

ee
s 

an
d 

bu
m

bl
e 

be
es

; 
an

d 
sh

el
te

r 
fo

r 
va

rio
us

 b
ird

s 
an

d 
fr

og
s.

 P
ro

vi
de

s 
ne

ct
ar

 f
or

 s
om

e 
in

se
ct

s 
an

d 
se

ve
ra

l 
m

ot
h 

ca
te

rp
ill

ar
s 

ea
t 

th
e 

fo
li-

ag
e.

 V
er

y 
vi

go
ro

us
, 

be
 c

ar
ef

ul
 it

 d
oe

sn
’t 

ta
ke

 o
ve

r. 
Pu

t 
it 

in
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 y

ou
 a

re
 c

le
ar

in
g 

ex
ot

ic
 i

nv
a-

si
ve

s!
  B

lo
om

s 
Ju

ly
 to

 S
ep

te
m

be
r. 

G
ol

de
nr

od
s 

So
lid

ag
e 

sp
p.

 
M

O
TH

 H
OS

T 
PL

AN
T 

G
o

ld
e

n
ro

d
s 

a
re

 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e  

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 

ne
ct

ar
 f

or
 b

ee
s,

 f
lie

s,
 

w
as

ps
, 

m
ot

hs
 

an
d 

b
u

t
t

e
r

f
l

i
e

s
.  

G
ol

de
nr

od
s 

ha
ve

 
a 

nu
m

be
r  

of
  

sp
ec

ie
s,

  
so

m
e 

 o
f 

w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 g
ar

de
n 

si
ze

 a
nd

 n
ot

 a
gg

re
ss

iv
e  

in
 

th
ei

r 
sp

re
ad

in
g.

 
G

ol
de

nr
od

 
do

es
 

N
O

T 
ha

ve
 

w
in

d-
 b

or
n 

po
lle

n.
 G

ia
nt

 r
ag

w
ee

d 
is

 w
ha

t 
tr

ig
ge

rs
 

sn
ee

zi
ng

 
at

 
th

e 
tim

e 
th

ey
 

bl
oo

m
. 

Bl
oo

m
s 

Se
pt

em
be

r t
o 

O
ct

ob
er

. 

B
e

n
e

fi
ci

a
l 

N
a

ti
v

e
 P

la
n

ts
 

Pa
rt

rid
ge

 P
ea

  
Ch

am
ae

ch
ris

ta
 fa

si
cu

la
ta

 
An

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 s

oi
l b

ui
ld

er
, t

ha
t 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

ra
pi

dl
y 

an
d 

pr
o-

vi
de

s 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l 
an

d 
ni

tr
og

en
 f

ix
at

io
n 

fo
r 

sl
ow

er
 

gr
ow

in
g 

pe
re

nn
ia

l f
or

bs
.  

Th
e 

sh
ow

y 
flo

w
er

s 
ar

e 
po

lli
na

te
d 

pr
im

ar
ily

 
by

 
bu

m
bl

e 
be

es
 

w
hi

le
 

sh
or

t-t
on

gu
ed

 
be

es
, 

pr
ed

at
or

y 
w

as
ps

, h
ov

er
 fl

ie
s 

an
d 

ta
ch

in
id

 fl
ie

s 
su

ck
 

ne
ct

ar
 fr

om
 g

la
nd

s 
on

 th
e 

le
af

 p
et

io
le

s.
  

Bl
oo

m
s 

Ju
ly

 to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r. 
H

a
p

p
y

 W
il

d
li

fe
 

G
a

rd
e

n
in

g!
 

 

…
W

hy
? 

 A
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 d
is

co
v-

er
ed

 
w

ith
 

m
ilk

w
ee

d,
 

th
es

e 
na

tiv
e 

pl
an

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
cr

iti
ca

l 
fo

r 
ou

r 
w

ild
lif

e.
  

N
at

iv
e 

be
es

 
an

d 
bu

tte
rfl

ie
s 

ar
e 

in
 d

ec
lin

e 
as

 w
e 

lo
se

 n
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ts
 e

ve
ry

 
da

y 
to

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
m

an
i-

cu
re

d 
ga

rd
en

s 
an

d 
ro

ad
si

de
s,

 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 c
om

pe
tit

io
n 

fr
om

 
in

va
si

ve
 p

la
nt

s.
  

Se
ve

ra
l 

of
 t

he
 “

go
od

 w
ee

ds
” 

lis
te

d 
he

re
 a

re
 h

os
t 

pl
an

ts
 –

 
m

ea
ni

ng
 b

ut
te

rfl
ie

s 
or

 m
ot

hs
 

la
y 

th
ei

r 
eg

gs
 o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
ts

, 
eg

gs
 

ha
tc

h 
in

to
 

ca
te

rp
ill

ar
s 

w
hi

ch
 

th
en

 
ea

t 
th

e 
le

av
es

.  
Ca

te
rp

ill
ar

s 
ar

e 
a 

tr
em

en
do

us
 

fo
od

 s
ou

rc
e 

fo
r 

bi
rd

s.
  

Pl
an

ts
, 

in
se

ct
s 

an
d 

bi
rd

s 
ar

e 
al

l i
nt

er
-

de
pe

nd
en

t; 
w

e 
ne

ed
 

 
ke

ep
 

th
em

 a
ll 

he
al

th
y 

an
d 

ha
pp

y.
 

...
O

r i
s 

th
at

 w
ee

d 
so

m
et

hi
ng

 I 
sh

ou
ld

 p
ul

l o
ut

? 
W

hi
le

 m
an

y 
ga

rd
en

er
s 

kn
ow

 t
he

re
 a

re
 i

nv
a-

si
ve

, e
xo

tic
 (n

on
-n

at
iv

e)
 w

ee
ds

 t
he

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

di
lig

en
t 

ab
ou

t 
re

m
ov

in
g 

fro
m

 t
he

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
, 

no
t a

ll 
“w

ee
ds

” 
ar

e 
a 

pr
ob

le
m

.  
H

er
e 

is
 a

 li
st

 o
f 

so
m

e 
“g

oo
d 

w
ee

ds
” 

to
 l

ea
ve

 i
n 

th
e 

w
ild

er
 

sp
ac

es
 o

f y
ou

r g
ar

de
ns

 –
 a

nd
 s

av
e 

tim
e 

w
ee

d-
in

g!
  

Cl
ym

en
e 

ha
lp

oa
 c

at
er

pi
lla

r o
n 

ca
lic

o 
as

te
r S

ym
ph

yo
tr

ic
hu

m
 

N
ee

d 
m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n?

   

H
er

e 
ar

e 
so

m
e 

pl
ac

es
 to

 lo
ok

: 

ht
tp

:/
/d

da
.d

el
aw

ar
e.

go
v/

pl
an

tin
d/

fo
rm

s/
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
/D

el
aw

ar
e%

20
N

at
iv

e%
20

Pl
an

ts
%

20
fo

r%
20

N
at

iv
e%

2
0B

ee
s.

pd
f 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.il
lin

oi
sw

ild
flo

w
er

s.
in

fo
/w

oo
dl

an
d/

pl
an

ts
 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.w
ild

flo
w

er
.o

rg
/p

la
nt

s 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.c

t-b
ot

an
ic

al
-s

oc
ie

ty
.o

rg
/P

la
nt

s 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.m

in
ne

so
ta

w
ild

flo
w

er
s.

in
fo

/ 

ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.g
ar

de
ns

w
ith

w
in

gs
.c

om
/p

la
nt

/A
st

er
/i

nd
ex

.h
tm

l 

Co
m

pi
le

d 
by

 E
la

in
e 

Sc
hm

er
lin

g,
 V

ill
ag

e 
of

  
Ar

de
nt

ow
n,

 th
e 

Ar
de

n 
Fo

re
st

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
  

El
iz

ab
et

h 
Va

rle
y.

  T
ha

nk
s 

to
 A

le
x 

Zo
ra

th
  a

nd
  

Su
e 

Ba
rt

on
 fo

r t
he

ir 
he

lp
. 

Co
m

m
on

 m
ilk

w
ee

d 
As

cl
ep

ia
s 

sy
ria

ca
 

BU
TT

ER
FL

Y 
H

O
ST

 
PL

AN
T 

 

Co
m

m
on

 B
la

ck
  

Sn
ak

er
oo

t   
 

Sa
ni

cu
la

 o
do

ra
ta

  
At

tr
ac

ts
 

sm
al

l 
be

es
. 

Se
ed

s 
ar

e 
sp

re
ad

 
by

 
m

am
m

al
s.

 B
lo

om
s 

M
ay

 
to

 Ju
ly

. 

H
ai

ry
 H

ea
th

 A
st

er
 

Sy
m

ph
yo

tr
ic

um
  p

ilo
su

m
 

As
te

rs
 

Sy
m

ph
yo

tr
ic

um
  

sp
p.

 
BU

TT
ER

FL
Y 

H
O

ST
 

PL
AN

T 
 

M
an

y 
di

ff
er

en
t 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 
th

at
 

ca
n 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
ra

pi
dl

y 
on

 d
is

tu
rb

ed
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

fa
llo

w
 

fie
ld

s.
 

Th
e 

nu
m

er
ou

s 
bl

ue
, w

hi
te

 o
r 

pi
nk

 
sm

al
l 

flo
w

er
s,

 a
re

 
vi

si
te

d 
by

 a
 m

ul
ti-

tu
de

 
of

 
be

e 
an

d 
ho

ve
r f

ly
 s

pe
ci

es
.  

  

Bl
oo

m
s 

Au
gu

st
 t

o 
Oc

to
be

r. 

Page 54 of 59



CCa
na

da
 L

et
tu

ce
 –

 L
ac

tu
ca

 
ca

na
de

ns
is

  
Bu

tte
rfl

ie
s,

 s
ki

pp
er

s 
an

d 
m

ot
hs

 fe
ed

 o
n 

th
is

 fo
lia

ge
.  

Ak
in

 to
 g

ar
de

n 
le

ttu
ce

, t
he

 
yo

un
g 

le
av

es
 a

re
 e

di
bl

e 
ei

-
th

er
 in

 s
al

ad
s 

or
 c

oo
ke

d;
 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 b
itt

er
.  

Bl
oo

m
s 

Ju
ly

 to
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 

Vi
rg

in
ia

 K
no

tw
ee

d 
or

 J
um

ps
ee

d 
 

Pe
rs

ic
ar

ia
 v

irg
in

ia
na

  
Vi

rg
in

ia
 ju

m
ps

ee
d 

ge
ts

 
its

 
na

m
e 

fr
om

 
its

 
sp

rin
g-

lo
ad

ed
 

se
ed

s.
 

W
he

n 
rip

e 
se

ed
s 

ar
e 

to
uc

he
d,

 
th

ey
 

sp
rin

g 
of

f 
th

e 
st

em
, 

ju
m

pi
ng

 
up

 t
o 

a 
fe

w
 fe

et
 a

w
ay

. 
Fl

ow
er

s 
on

 
lo

ng
 

ra
-

ce
m

es
 a

re
  

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
to

 n
at

iv
e 

be
es

.  
Bl

oo
m

s 
Ju

ly
 t

o 
Oc

to
be

r .
 

Je
w

el
w

ee
d 

 
Im

pa
tie

ns
 c

ap
en

si
s 

  
A 

hu
ge

 m
ag

ne
t 

fo
r 

be
es

 
of

 
al

l 
ki

n
ds

 
an

d 
hu

m
m

in
gb

ird
s.

 
 

Se
ed

s 
ea

te
n 

by
 

bi
rd

s 
&

 
m

am
m

al
s.

 
So

m
e 

de
er

 
br

ow
se

 
w

ill
 

ke
ep

 
it 

in
 

ch
ec

k 
- 

sp
re

ad
s 

al
l 

ov
er

 
in

 w
et

 y
ea

rs
 b

ut
 e

as
y 

to
 

pu
ll 

ou
t 

w
he

re
 y

ou
 d

on
’t 

w
an

t 
it.

  
Al

lo
w

 i
t 

in
 w

et
 

m
ea

do
w

s/
w

ild
er

 a
re

as
.  

Bl
oo

m
s 

Ju
ly

 to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r. 
 

 

M
O

TH
 H

OS
T 

PL
AN

T 
Th

e 
be

rr
ie

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 
im

po
rt

an
t 

w
in

te
r 

fo
od

 
so

ur
ce

 f
or

 b
ird

s.
  

Us
ed

 
as

 a
n 

or
na

m
en

ta
l 

fo
r 

its
 f

al
l 

co
lo

ra
tio

n.
  

 A
t 

so
m

e 
st

ag
es

 
fo

lia
ge

 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

is
ta

ke
n 

fo
r p

oi
so

n 
iv

y.
 

Bl
oo

m
s 

M
ay

 to
 Ju

ly
. 

Vi
rg

in
ia

 c
re

ep
er

  
Pa

rt
he

no
ci

ss
us

 q
ui

nq
ue

fo
lia

, 

Co
m

m
on

 th
re

e-
se

ed
 m

er
-

cu
ry

  
Ac

al
yp

ha
 rh

om
bo

id
ea

   
Ca

n 
th

riv
e 

in
 

di
st

ur
be

d 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

to
le

ra
te

s 
fu

ll 
su

n 
to

 l
ig

ht
 s

ha
de

. 
M

ay
 

se
ed

 i
n 

na
tu

ra
lly

, 
se

ed
s 

ar
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
to

 b
ird

s 
an

d 
m

am
m

al
s.

 C
an

 b
e 

a 
go

od
 

fil
le

r 
w

he
re

 
in

va
si

ve
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

re
m

ov
ed

. 
Bl

oo
m

s 
Ju

ly
 to

 O
ct

ob
er

. 

Fa
ls

e 
N

et
tle

  
Bo

eh
m

er
ia

 c
yl

in
dr

ic
a  

BU
TT

ER
FL

Y 
H

O
ST

 
PL

AN
T 

H
as

 
no

 
st

in
gi

ng
 

ha
irs

 
lik

e 
st

in
gi

ng
 n

et
tle

, 
bu

t 
is

 a
 h

os
t p

la
nt

 fo
r s

ev
er

-
al

 c
at

er
pi

lla
rs

 li
ke

 a
ll 

in
 

th
e 

ne
ttl

e 
fa

m
ily

:  
Co

m
a,

 
Q

ue
st

io
n 

M
ar

k 
an

d 
Re

d 
Ad

m
ira

l, 
an

d 
on

e 
m

ot
h.

   
Si

m
ila

r t
o 

 P
ile

a 
pu

m
ila

 
sh

ow
n 

be
lo

w
.  

Bl
oo

m
s 

Ju
ly

 to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r. 

D
ai

sy
 F

le
ab

an
e 

 
Er

ig
er

on
 s

tr
ig

os
us

  
M

an
y 

be
es

 
vi

si
t 

fo
r 

po
lle

n 
or

 n
ec

-
ta

r. 
Ot

he
r 

in
se

ct
s 

fe
ed

 
on

 
th

e 
fo

li-
ag

e.
 

 
G

oo
d 

fo
r 

er
os

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l.  

D
ee

r,
 

ra
bb

it
s,

 
g

ro
u

n
d

h
o

g
s

, 
sh

ee
p,

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

liv
es

to
ck

 
oc

ca
-

si
on

al
ly

 b
ro

w
se

 o
n 

th
e 

fo
lia

ge
 a

nd
 f

lo
w

er
 h

ea
ds

.  
Bl

oo
m

s 
Ju

ne
 to

 S
ep

te
m

be
r. 

En
ch

an
te

r's
 N

ig
ht

sh
ad

e 
 

Ci
rc

ae
a 

lu
te

tia
na

  
Fe

ed
s 

sm
al

l b
ee

s 
an

d 
a 

m
ot

h;
 

bi
rd

s 
an

d 
m

am
-

m
al

s 
ea

t 
se

ed
s.

 
Bi

rd
s 

an
d 

m
am

m
al

s 
he

lp
 

to
 

di
st

rib
ut

e 
th

e 
se

ed
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

sm
al

l 
bu

r-l
ik

e 
fr

ui
ts

 
ca

n 
cl

in
g 

to
 fe

at
he

rs
 a

nd
 

fu
r; 

th
es

e 
fr

ui
ts

 c
an

 c
lin

g 
to

 
th

e 
cl

ot
hi

ng
 

of
 

hu
-

m
an

s 
as

 w
el

l. 
  

Bl
oo

m
s 

Ju
ne

 to
 A

ug
us

t. 

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

 
Bi

tte
r 

Cr
es

s 
Ca

rd
am

in
e 

pe
ns

yl
va

ni
ca

   
BU

TT
ER

FL
Y 

H
O

ST
 P

LA
N

T 
 

Sm
al

l 
be

es
 

or
 

flo
w

er
 

fli
es

 
vi

si
t 

th
e 

flo
w

er
s.

 C
at

er
pi

lla
rs

 
of

 a
 m

ot
h 

ar
e 

kn
ow

n 
to

 f
ee

d 
on

 t
he

 f
ol

ia
ge

 a
nd

 c
at

er
pi

l-
la

rs
 o

f t
he

 b
ut

te
rfl

y 
Fa

lc
at

e 
O

ra
ng

et
ip

 fe
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

flo
w

er
s,

 b
ud

s,
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
se

ed
po

ds
 o

f 
th

es
e 

pl
an

ts
.  

Bl
oo

m
s 

M
ar

ch
 to

 Ju
ly

. 

G
re

at
 Y

el
lo

w
 W

oo
ds

or
re

l  

O
xa

lis
  gg

ra
nd

is
  

N
ec

ta
r 

&
 p

ol
le

n 
at

tr
ac

t 
be

es
. 

 
Ea

te
n 

by
 

so
m

e 
bi

rd
s,

  
de

er
 a

nd
 m

ic
e.

 
Bl

oo
m

s 
M

ay
 to

 Ju
ne

. 

Cl
ea

rw
ee

d 
 

Pi
le

a 
pu

m
ila

    
 

BU
TT

ER
FL

Y 
H

O
ST

 P
LA

N
T 

 
Tr

an
sl

uc
en

t 
fo

lia
ge

.  
  

H
os

t 
pl

an
t f

or
 s

ev
er

al
 c

at
er

pi
lla

rs
 

of
 

bu
tte

rfl
ie

s 
an

d 
m

ot
hs

 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

  
Co

m
a,

 Q
ue

st
io

n 
M

ar
k 

an
d 

Re
d 

Ad
m

ira
l. 

 
Be

ne
fic

ia
l 

fo
r 

a 
fe

w
 o

th
er

 
in

se
ct

s.
 

 
Bl

oo
m

s 
Ju

ly
 

to
 

Se
pt

em
be

r. 

C
om

m
on

 B
lu

e 
Vi

ol
et

 
Vi
ol
a 
so
ro
ria

  
BU

TT
ER

FL
Y 

H
O

ST
 

PL
AN

T 
 

Th
e 

flo
w

er
s 

ar
e 

oc
ca

-
si

on
al

ly
 v

is
ite

d 
by

 i
n-

se
ct

s 
an

d 
ca

n 
at

tr
ac

t 
be

es
, 

sk
ip

pe
rs

, 
Sy

r-
ph

id
 f

lie
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

se
ct

s.
 T

he
 c

at
er

pi
lla

rs
 o

f 
se

v-
er

al
 F

rit
ill

ar
y 

bu
tte

rfl
ie

s 
fe

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

lia
ge

. 
Va

rio
us

 
up

la
nd

 g
am

eb
ird

s 
an

d 
sm

al
l m

am
m

al
s 

oc
ca

si
on

al
ly

 
ea

t t
he

 s
ee

ds
. B

lo
om

s 
Ap

ril
 to

 Ju
ne

. 

Page 54 of 59



M
ilk
w
ee
d

10
m

ilk
w

8x
11

ou
tli

ne
s.i

nd
d

7/
19

/2
00

5,
 2

:4
0 

PM
1

Page 54 of 59



Fo
r 

dr
y 

to
 m

ed
iu

m
 s

oi
ls

 

C
om

m
on

 m
ilk

w
ee

d 
As

cl
ep

ia
s 

sy
ria

ca
24

 - 
3

6
”

pi
nk

, p
ur

pl
e,

 
w

hi
te

B
ut

te
rfl 

y 
w

ee
d 

As
cl

ep
ia

s 
tu

be
ro

sa
1

2
 - 

24
”

or
an

ge
, r

ed

As
te

rs
 

As
te

r s
pp

.
6

 –
 2

4
”

bl
ue

-v
io

le
t, 

pi
nk

 
w

hi
te

s

G
ol

de
nr

od
 

So
lid

ag
o 

sp
p.

1
8

 –
 2

4
”

ye
llo

w
s

Ph
lo

x 
Ph

lo
x 

sp
p.

6
 –

 2
4

”
pu

rp
le

, w
hi

te
, 

bl
ue

Fa
ls

e 
su

nfl
 o

w
er

s 
H

el
io

ps
is

 s
pp

.
4

8
 –

 6
0

”
ye

llo
w

s

Vi
ol

et
s 

Vi
ol

a 
sp

p.
3

 - 
6

”
vi

ol
et

, w
hi

te

C
or

eo
ps

is
 

Co
re

op
si

s 
sp

p.
8

 –
 2

4
”

ye
llo

w
s,

 p
in

ks

B
lu

e 
ve

rv
ai

n 
Ve

rb
en

a 
ha

st
at

a
3

6
-6

0
”

la
ve

nd
er

-b
lu

e

W
ild

 B
er

ga
m

ot
 

M
on

ar
da

 fi 
st

ul
os

a
1

2
-3

6
”

ro
se

 p
in

k

G
re

at
 b

lu
e 

lo
be

lia
 

Lo
be

lia
 s

yp
hi

lit
ic

a
24

-3
6

”
vi

ol
et

-p
ur

pl
e

S
un
fl o

w
er

s 
H

el
ia

nt
hu

s 
sp

p.
3

6
-7

2
”

ye
llo

w

Pu
rp

le
 C

on
efl

 o
w

er
 

Ec
hi

na
ce

a 
pu

rp
ur

ea
24

-6
0

”
pi

nk
-d

ee
p 

ro
se

Fo
r 

m
oi

st
 to

 m
ed

iu
m

 s
oi

ls

S
w

am
p 

m
ilk

w
ee

d 
As

cl
ep

ia
s 

in
ca

rn
at

a
3

6
 - 

4
8

”
pi

nk
, w

hi
te

Li
at

ris
 L

ia
tr

is
 s

pp
.

24
 - 

3
6

”
pi

nk
-p

ur
pl

es

Iro
nw

ee
d 

Ve
rn

on
ia

 fa
sc

ic
ul

at
a

3
6

 –
 4

8
”

de
ep

 p
ur

pl
e

S
po

tt
ed

 J
oe

 P
ye

 
W

ee
d 

Eu
pa

to
riu

m
 

m
ac

ul
at

um

24
-7

2
”

pi
nk

-p
ur

pl
e

  
 

 
10

m
ilk

w
8x

11
ou

tli
ne

s.i
nd

d
7/

19
/2

00
5,

 2
:4

0 
PM

2

Page 54 of 59



Page 55 of 59



Page 54 of 59



Page 54 of 59



To
w

n 
of

 G
eo

rg
et

ow
n

Se
co

nd
 S

es
sio

n,
 15

0th
 D

el
aw

ar
e 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
 

Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
Re

po
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pr

ep
ar

ed
 B

y:
 

Eu
ge

ne
 S

. D
vo

rn
ic

k,
 Jr

., T
ow

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

22
, 2

02
0

Page 54 of 59



Page 59 of 59


